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CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED XunaLteren XORIGINAL SITE
XGoop __RUINS __ALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Carter—Archer Mansion, located on the east side of Rock Run Road near its intersection
with Stafford Road is an impressive two storey L-shaped house built, according to a
datestone which appears in the west gable, in 1804. The main section which runs east-west
is five bays wide and one bay deep while the north-south section is six bays wide and one
bay deep. The entire structure, with the exception of the southernmost bay of the north-
south section, was constructed simaltaneously. The walls of the entire structure are
coursed rubble stone with quoined corners. Mortar joints recently have been re-pointed.

The principle (north) facade of the main section displays a central doorway flanked by
two windows with 6/6 sash on the first storey. Windows also with 6/6 sash are located
in the corresponding five openings of the second storey. All windows are framed by
architraved surrounds, recessed wood lintels and slightly projecting wood sills. This
framing system will hold true for all windows openings of both sections. Windows are
flanked by louvered shutters. An elevated one-bay portico shelters the main entrance.
Chamfered wooden piers resting on attic bases and surmounted by molded capitals support
the slate gable roof. The six-paneled door is recessed with paneled jambs and transom
bar. A stone sill and four-light transom further define the entrance.

The gable slate roof ends in a boxed cornice crowned by a series of moldings with a
shallow molded frieze rumning below. This cornice treatment continues around the entire
"L" structure.

The west facade, with the exception of 2/4 light, fixed-sashed windows at the attic level,
is without fenestration. An elaborate datestone appears below the windows. This oval
stone, bearing the inscription J &R is enclosed by a brick ring. Molded rake boards

1840
outline the gable area. A corbel-capped brick interior chimney rises from this facade.

The south facade yields only three bays due to the construction of the north-south
section. On the first storey an entrance is located in the easternmost bay. Windows
with 6/9 sash mark the two remaining openings. Windows with 6/6 sash are found above the
first storey windows while a 6/4 sashed window is located above the entrance.

An interior brick chimney is located at the northeast juncture of the two sections. The -
west facade of the north-south section is four bays wide. A one storey shed-roofed open
porch spans almost the entire facade, ending at the southernmost bay, which is a later
stone addition. The porch supports are similar to the chamfered piers of the front portico,
A six-paneled door, recessed with paneled jambs and head, is found in the third bay from
the northwest corner;windows with 6/6 sash mark the remaining three openings. On the
second storey 6/6 sashed windows are located above the window in the southernmost bay,
above the doorway and above and between the two remaining first storey windows.

An intericr brick chimney is located in the south wall of the original north-south
section.

The one-bay south gable facade of the north-south section yields an off-centered, six-
paneled door. A pent roof shelters this entrance. Directly above this entrance is a
6/6 sashed window with an architraved surround. Two six-light, fixed sashed windows

flank an interior brick chimney at attic level.
CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
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B} SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW

__PREHISTORIC  _ARCHEULUGY-PREHISTORIC  __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE  _ RELIGION

—1400-1499 __ARCHEOLOGY-HISTORIC __CONSERVATION _LAW __SCIENCE

—_1500-1599 __AGRICULTURE __ECONOMICS __LITERATURE __SCULPTURE

—_1600-1699 X ARCHITECTURE __EDUCATION __MILITARY __SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN

__1700-1788 __ART __ENGINEERING __MUSIC __THEATER

X 1800-1893 __COMMERCE _EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT  __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION

__1900- __COMMUNICATIONS __INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT XOTHER (SPECIFY)
__INVENTION LocAr HrsToRy

SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The following information was collected by Paul Perrod in 1976, The title search was
also executed by him,

The tract of land where the house is located was once the land of Nathaniel Giles,
who had owned a mill nearby that had been erected by his father, Jacob Giles, in the
mid-1700’s,

In 1797 John Stump purchased this portion of the "Land of Promise'" from Nathaniel's
heirs, after building the nearby Rock Run Mill #n 1795, He became a business partner
with John Carter in 1801, and in 1804 the latter erected the house. Carter died soon
afterwards, and Stump, who was notorious for his ruthlessness, forcibly evicted Carter's
widow and re-acquired the farm and the house from Samuel Carter in 1808.

when John Stump died in 1816, his widow Cassandra, conveyed the property to her daughter
Ann, who was married to Dr. John Archer, Jr. Ann had resided in this house since 1808
and would do so untill her death in 1871.

Besides the Carter house and the plantation around it, the Archers also owned the Rock
Run Mill, as well as much of the Bells Ferry tract that was resurveyed in 1837 and
laid out as lapidum.

A great number of the Archer family enjoyed distinguished military careers.

Dr. John Archer, Jr., son of John Archer, was actively involved in the Revolutionary
War. John Jr's brother Robert was also a doctor and served as a surgeon with the 42nd
Maryland Militia Regiment during the War of 1812. Another son, James, entered the
military and served with distinction as an officer in the Mexican War. He fought for
the Confederacy during the Civil War, initially leading Texan troops and then commanding
a brigade in the army of Northern Virginia. He participated in every major battle from
the Seven Days until Gettysburg, where his unit was one of the first to be engaged.
After being captured at Gettysburg he spent a year at the Johnson Island Prison before
being repatriated to Richmond, where he died in 1864. Henry W. Archer, the yoangest
son, was a prominent Harford County lawyer who was also active in church and civic
affairs. He served as a member of the Maryland Legislature and also with the 1867
Constitutional Convention. His first office was located on the upper floor of the
springhouse.

. house itself is architecturally significant in the arrangement and the construction
poth sections, with the kitchen being so removed from the dining area and the
presence of the still sealed-off slave quarters.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY
SEE CONTINUATION SHEET #



FEJIMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Hf\ %r";) £ f”

Mason, Samuel; Historical Sketches of Harford County 1955, Lancaster, Pa,
Miller, Francis T.; The Photographic History of the Civil War, Vol. 10., The Armie

and the Leaders, 1957 Castle, N. Y.
Silver, Albert P. Lapidum 1888.

Wright, C. Milton Our Harford Heritage 1967, Baltimore, Md.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY

FJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION

LIST ALL STATES AND COUNTIES FOR PROPERTIES OVERLAPPING STATE OR COUNTY BOUNDARIES

STATE COUNTY
STATE COUNTY
[B1FORM PREPARED BY
NAME / TITLE

Bridget M. Deale, Historic Sites Surveyor

ORGANIZATION
Maryland Historical Trust

DATE

STREET & NUMBER
21 State Circle

TELEPHONE

(301)269-2438

CITY OR TOWN
Annapolis, Md.

STATE
Maryland 21401

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created
by an Act of the Maryland Legislature, to be found in the
Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA,

1974 Supplement.

The Survey and Inventory are being prepared for information
and record purposes only and do not constitute any infringe-

ment of individual property rights.

RETURN TO: Maryland Historical Trust

The Shaw House, 21 State Circle

Annapolis, Maryland 21401
(301) 267-1438

PsS. 1108



HA 192,193, 194
DNR 8

PAGE -2--

The east facade of the north-south section is six bays wide with a brick
terrace constructed across the four southernmost bays. A doorway is located
in the southernmost bay of the original section. A heavily architraved hood
shelters this entrance. Windows with 6/9 sash occupy the four openings to

the north of the doorway. A 6/6 sashed window is located in the single bay

of the southern addition. On the second storey six €/6 sashed windows appear
in the corresponding openings. Windows on this facade are flanked by

louvered shutters. A cellar entrance is located in the northermnmost bay. Two
three light fixed sashed small windows also appear at basement level.

A herringbone brick walk htegins at the southern end of the west facade of
the main section and continues along the rear "L", around the south facade of
the north-south section and ultimately leads to the east terrace.

INTERIOR

The main section of the mansion is very straight forward: a central hall
flanked by parlors on the first floor and bedrooms on the second. The west
parlor has been fully restored and furnished with period furniture. Original
recessed panel reveals with architraved surrounds define the window openings.
Beaded chair, cornice molding and baseboards skirt the perimeter of the room.
The six-paneled door is pegged and is framed by an architraved surround. The
fireplace opening yields an elaborate mantel. The east parlor, although not
fully restored possesses similar trim. The central stair runs along the west
hall wall. It is two run, open string design with a rounded newel post and
fluted balusters. The two rooms of the second floor are similar to those of
the first floor.

The north-south section is a series of rooms, one following the other. The
most impressive space is the kitchen located in the southern end of this
section. A huge brick hearth and oven with the original andirons and cranes
still intact is currently being restored by park personnel. A second stairway,
this one being a narrow winder, leaas from the kitchen to the upstairs slave
quarters which is sealed off from the rest of the house.

OUTBUILDINGS
Carridge House/Barn

This two storey fieldstone structure is located several hundred yards below
the main house. The heavily quoined stone walls are three bays by two with
louvered windows. Large vertical boarded doors are found on the nothereast
and wouthwest sides with stone voussoirs over each. Three regular doors, omne
with a shed pediment, are %ocated slong the east. facade, as is the loft door.
There are pattern brick louvers in the walls. The cellar is built into the
hillside on the southeast side, with a retaining wall around it. The gable
roof is wood-shingled.

Privy

This structure is located behind the barn. It is a very small one-storey
shanty of the same stone with a new hip roof and box cornice. The doorway is
on the western side and there are slit windows on the northern and southern
walls.
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Springhouse

This building is further down the slope from the rest of the outbuildings,
near Rock Run Mill. Again, it is of the same type of uncoursed stone, with
quoined corners. The structure is of two storeys, two bays wide and one bay
deep. The windows are restored louvers with pegged frames. Doorways are
found on the northeast and west sides. The gable roof is of restored wood
shingles.



CONTINUATION OF CARTER-ARCHER MANSION SIGNIFICANCE

The Maryland Historical Magazine in its March, June and December 1961 issues has
1blished a series called, "James J. Archer Letters" edited by C. A. Porter Hopkins.
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Barn

This two-story building is located several hundred yards below the house, facing
towards the northeast. The sie walls are three bays by two with louvered windows
whick have been replaced. Large board-and-batten doors are located onethe northeast
and southwest sides, with arches over each one. Three regular doors, one with a shed
pediment, are loacted along the eastern embrasure, as is the loft door. There are
patterned brick louvers in the walls. The cellarway ic bdilt into the hiilside on
the southeast side, with a reataining wall around it. The roof is gable-front and

is wood=shingled,
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Privy

This structure is located just behind the barn. It is a very small one-story shanty
of the same stone with a new hip roof and box cornice. The doorway is on the western
side and there are slit windows on the northern and southern walls. Inside is the
original plaster on the walls, as well as an old clothes rack and three-hole commode,

Springhouse

This building is further down the slope from the rest of the outbuildings, just across
the road from the Rock Run Mill, Again, it is of the same type of uncoursed stone, with
quoined corners. The structure is of two stories, with bays that measure two by one.

The windows are restored louvers with pegged frames. One door is on the northeast

side, the direction in which the building faces, while the other is on the second level
on the western side, flush with the ground due to the slope that the building is
situated upon. The gable flank roof of wood shingles is a restoration, as are the eaves.
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TITLE SEARCH

3

In 1961, Marie Wilkinson Turcotte and Hemry ancotqe sold
two parcels, measuring 1.7l and 32.5L acres, %o the Maryland
Department of Forests and Parks.

after the death
Wilkinson in 1958.

Lavinia Macklem sold the 33-acre tract of the Rock Run Mill
to Wilfred W. Wilkinson In 1527.
In 190L, William S. Archer an Archer, trusiees, soli
the 33 acr=zz to John . Hacklem : desd states that this
track was part of the Lend of fromize, which was owned by
iy 561 l,,y, and walch was then sold

Yafhun*fl Niles unu*l nis dea
in 1797 by Elizabeth Giles to Tohn Stump of 'Stafford.

T

In 1843, Elizabeth Esley snld 1! acres to Wilfred W. Wilkirson.

)

William S. Archer,
Elizabeth Ksley in

sold the nlot to

C}
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Henry W. Archer, Jr., was named as z trustee after a court case
involving lenry W. Archer and Thomas W. Maddock. In 1878, the
trustee sold Henry W. Archer the Reck Run Mill property of

50 acres as well as an adjacent farm of 132 acres, three roods
and 36 perches., The trastees were holding the property afue“
the death of Ann Archer, daughter of John Stump. Ann had be

left considerable holdings including the Pock Run Mill and ‘he
0ld Carter houss after John» Sivrg'" death in 18%1&. 2nn died

in L{l leaving the property to her son, Henry W. Archer; as
executor. '
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/" Libre Folio
JIG L 269 The executors of the Jacob Giles estate conveyed one-halfl
acre near Rock Run Landing to John Stump in 179k,
o~
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DESCRIPTION

CONDITION CHECK ONE CHECK ONE
__EXCELLENT __DETERIORATED EUNALTERED zomcmAL SITE
_Jso000 __RUINS __ALTERED __MOVED DATE
__FAIR __UNEXPOSED

DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

This is an L-shaped two-story house that points towards the northeast. The longer leg
runs notth-south while the shorter one is east-west oriented. The entire structure was
built simaltaneously, with the possible exception of a two by one bay part of the extreme
southern portion of the house, which has a newe: -stone seam. The walls of the entire
structure are coursed rubble stone with quoined corners. Overall, the bays run as six by
five on the outside of the "L" and four bays by three on the inside. Windows are 6 X 9,
enclosed in recent frames and sashes, and there are two six-pane attic windows on either
end of the house. Slit cellar openings are positioned near the northeast corner and on
the northern side, where the foundation is highest. Two doors face the river on the
western embrasure, one being a central entrance and the other a cellar door, near the
northwest corner. The main entrance is located on the northwast side, complete with a
four-light transom. There is a door directly behind the main one on the southern side,
as wetl as an opposite member on the eastern side to the river-facing entrance. The last
such opening is on the extreme southern end of the house. The porch over the eastern
entrance is actually a gable pediment, with a stone base and a wood railing. A similar
pillared structure shields the northeaztern main entrance. A fi-E-bay shed-roof porch
extends along the entire eastern embrasure of the north-south leg. A shed-pediment
encloses the southern doorway. The roof is a gable flank, meeting at a hipped corner
where the two legs intersect, and is slate-covered. The corbeled brick chimneys are
original. Two interior center-line chimneys are situated on the north-south wing, amd
a flush-end is loaated on both the southern and western extremes of the wings. A date-
stone, ringed with brick, appears on the western wall under the chimney and reads
n C ". A brick patterned walk skirts the house along the entire inside of the "L",
¢ * R and a second such walk leads to the northeast porch. Granite steps lead to
1804 the arbor, located on the northwest side of the house,

The kitchen is located in the extreme southern end with a huge brick fireplace and
oveny The old andirons and cranes are still in it. There is original panelled trim
around all of the door and window recesses in all of the rooms as well as beaded chair
rails and shoe molding. Some of the doors have retained their old hardware. There are
two sets of opposite doors, though only the western one constitutes a thru-hall, where
the sbidrs-zre. A second stairwell leads to: the upstairs slave quarters, sealed off
from the rest of the house, and there is a loft above this for the housing of more
slaves. The dining room on the first floor is situated so that food had to brought from
the kitchen via the western door and outdoors to the southern entrance to the thru-hall,
In the full basement, there are arches underneath all of the fireplaces and there is
also evidence of pegging in the beams,

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



K} SIGNIFICANCE
PERIOD AREAS OF SIGNIFICANCE -- CHECK AND JUSTIFY BELOW
—PREHISTORIC —ARCHEOLOGY-PREHISTORIC __COMMUNITY PLANNING __LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE ___RELIGION
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—1600-1699 _XARCHITECTURE — EDUCATION — MILITARY —SOCIAL/HUMANITARIAN
—1700-1799 —ART _ENGINEERING —_MuUSIC __THEATER
Z71800-1899 — COMMERCE —EXPLORATION/SETTLEMENT __PHILOSOPHY __TRANSPORTATION
—1900- — COMMUNICATIONS —INDUSTRY __POLITICS/GOVERNMENT __OTHER {SPECIFY)
_INVENTION
SPECIFIC DATES BUILDER/ARCHITECT

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The tract where the house is located was once the land of Nathaniel Giles, who had
ovned a mill nearby that had been erected by his father, Jacob Giles, in the middle
1700's, In 1797, John Stumdpurchased this portion of the "Land of Promise" from
Nathaniel's heirs, after building the nearby Rock Run Mill in 1795. He bee@ame a business
partner with John Carter in 1801, and in 1804 the latter erected the house. Carter died
soon afterwards, and 8tump, who was notorious for his ruthlessness, forcibly evicted
Carter's widow and re-acquired the farm and the house from Samuel Carter in 1808. When
John Stump died in 1816, his widow, Cassandra, conveyed the property to her daughter
Ann, who was martied to Dr. John Archer, Jr. Ann had resided in this house since 1808
#~d would do so until her death in 1871. Besides the Carter house and the plantatiom
sund it, the Archers also owned the Rock Run Mill, as well as much of the Bell's
Ferry tract that was resurveyed irn 1837 and laid out as Lapidum. Dr. John Archer, Jr.,
was the son of Dr. John Archer, who had been actively invclied in Revolutionary War
activities. John Jr.'s brother, Robert, was also a doctor and had served as a surgeon
with the L42nd Maryland Militia Regiment during the War of 1812. The Archers had seven
children: James, Robert, Henry W., Mary, Nancy, Hannah A. Constable and Catherine
Smithson. James, the eldest, entered the military and served with distinction as an
officer in the Mexican War. Le fought for the Confederacy during the Civil War, initially
leading Texan troops and tnen comrmanding a brigade in the Army of Northern Virginia,
participating in every major battle from the Seven Days until Gettysburg, where his
unit was one of the first to be engaged. After being captured at Gettysburg he spent
a year at the Johnson Island Prison before being repatriated to Richmond, where he died
in 186L. Henry W. Archer, the youngest son, was a prominent Harford Bounty lawyer who
was also active in church and civic affairs. He served as a member of the Maryland
Legislature and also with the 1867 Constitutional Convention. His first office was
"located on the upper floor of the springhouse,

.The house itself is architecturally significant in the arrangement and the construction
- of the wings, with the kitchen being so removed from the dining area and the presence
"of the still sealed-off slave quarters.

The Maryland Historical Magazine, iun it's iMarch, June and December 1961 issues, has
published a series called, "Jcres J.sArch ar: Letterstyiedited by C. A. Porter Hopkins.

CONTINUE ON SEPARATE SHEET IF NECESSARY



FIMA]JOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Harford County Land Records
Mason, Samuel; Historical Sketches of Ha#ford County, 1955, Intelli -
: ; # gencer, Lancaster.
Miller, Francis T. (ed.); The Photographic History of the 5ivil War, Vol.’lO, The
. Armies and the Leaders, 1957, Castle, N.Y. _‘
Silver, Albert P.; Lapidum, 1888,

X(IZJI(‘)?'I}‘]BIU% (P)'I%IltéoEnlg Qur Harford Heritage,- %g%}& French Bray, Baltimore.
FJGEOGRAPHICAL DATA

ACREAGE OF NOMINATED PROPERTY 30‘5}"‘

VERBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
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where otherwise the tract is bordered by other park lands.
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INVENTORY No. 1G X 143194 ELECTION DISTRICT

7/

DATE: S 2l T TAX MAP NO.

REMODELING: Drastic, moderate, minor PARCEL NO.

NAME OF PROPERTY: Pocll (LN SPRMN GHe—

LOCATION OF PROPERTY: _qus STA7E Rapri , NR.TOKTRON Qv

DIRECTION DWELLING FACES: Roxrn EnsT

NAME OF OWNER:  _cus =7aTe payc/ MO DEPL Faeectc+ Fares

ADDRESS: ARAHAGLD #9182

STORIES: 1[ ] 204 30 ] 4[] 501 e[ ] BAYs: [ ] 2[ 1 301 41 s[1]
WINGS, ADDITIONS: 2xl g1 701 [1

WALL CONSTRUCTION:
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